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1 1IN THE CIRCHIT COURT BOR THE COUNTY OF FRANKLIN | 1 IN THE CIRCUIT COURT FOR THE COUNTY OF FRANKLIN
: o T e : Rt
3 gTATE oF MISBOURI, y 3 ETATE OF MISSOURE, J
4 PFlailntief, 1 :II'.‘I.llls No. 12AB-CROZ4DS-01 4 Plainticr, ¥ Icaunn Ho. 1IAE-CROZA08-0L
5. wa. E E we. I
& JEFFREY R. WEINHATS, 3 & JEFPREY R. WEIMHADS, :
T Defendant, ; T Dafendant. i
B B
5 £l DEPOSITICN OF SCOTT MERTRME, takan on behalf of the
10 10 pPefesdant, on tha §th day of June, 013, between the hours
11 11 of eight o'closk in tha formncon and eix o'clock in the
132 12 afternoon of that day, in the offices of the Franklin
13 DEFOSITION OF H00TT MERTEKS, 13 county Presecuting hbttesmay's office, 1% 8. Church Etraet,
14 Taken on Behalf of the Defendant 14 vnion, Mimoouzi, befsce Jese W. Eich, & Miggousi Certifiad
15 June &, 2013 15 tourt Beporter, license nusber 411.
16 16 APPEARANCEH
17 17 The Flaintiff was represantsd by Mr. Robert H,
18 18 Pparka., II, Franklin County FProgacuting Attorney, 18 E.
15 1% Church, Room 204, Tnion, Mispousd 63084,
29 20 The Defendant wam represented by Mr. Hugh
21 COURT REFORTING ASSOCIATES 21 FEaptwood, Attgorpey at law, 7777 Bonhomme, Suite 1603,
P.0. BOX 440014
a2 ST, LOULS, HISSOURI 63144 22 Clayton, Missocuri §3105.
23 3117265 1503 23
24 24
25 FReported by: Jane M. Bich, RPR, CZR, OCR 25
o Paga 2 Page: 4
LE INDEZX i e
2 DEPOSITION EXHIBITS: 2 SCDTT MERTENS,
A Fa2® | 3 of lawful age, having been first duly sworn to testify the
4 PLaleblEfts Bxhinit: § % | 4 truth, the whole truth, and nothing but the truth, deposes
5 5 and says on behall of the Defendant as follows:
& &R § DIRECT EXAMINATION
T vizech Bumiastlon by M, Frstimod * | 7 QUESTIONS BY MR. EASTWOOD:
g B Q Can you state your full name for the record, |
E 5 sir? [
10 10 A My name is Scott Edward Mertens, and that's |
11 11 spelled M-e-r-t-e-n-s.
iz 12 ) And you are with the Missouri State Highway
13 13 Patral?
14 14 A That is correct.
15 I15 ) Okay. And where are you stationed? What
16 l16 troop are you with?
17 i A I'm out of the general headquarters.
18 18 (} And where 1s that?
15 1a A In Jefferson City, but I'm stationed in Rolla, |
20 20 Missouri. [
21 21 } And what troop letter is that? [
a2 22 A It's — Well, I'm under a division. |
23 3 O Okay. |
o4 24 A I'm out of the general headquarters, but I'm
a5 25 under the division of drug and crime control. I
|
N |

Flin-Li-Soriphe

Court Reporting Associates

{1) Page 1 - Page 4



STATE OF MISSOURI v. Franklin County, MO No. 12AB-CR02402-01 SCOTT MERTENS
JEFFREY R. WEINHAUS June 6, 2013
= Page 5 Page 7
1 0 Arevou affiliated in some way with Troop I7 | 1 A Tam.
2 A Tam assigned to the Troop T area through Jeff | 2 Q You're not too tired?
3 City. 3 A No,I'm not. .
2 0 And how old of a man are you, sir? 4 ()} Okay. What did you review in order o -- what |
5 A I'md3. 5 documents or other things did you review in order to
6 ) Okay. And-what is vour DS, or badge number? | & prepare for today?
7 A My badge number is 367, 7 A 1listened fo my recorded inferview and I've
g 0 And what is the highest level of education you | 8 read partial things in the blue book here.
¢ have achieved? 3 3 Okay. The blue book, what is that?
10 A I have a Bachelor's of science. 10 A That is the investigation of the incident
11 ) Okay. Where is that from? 11 involving Jeffrey Weinhaus on September 11th.
1z A Drury University. 1z () This the investigation that was performed by
13 ) Okay. And have you served in the military? |13 Perry Smith and others?
14 A No, I have not. 14 A That is correct.
15 @ Okay. And how long have you been employed |15 () Okay. And who did you talk to in order to
16 with the Missouri State Highway Patrol? 16 prepare for today?
17 A Since January 1st of 1996. 17 A I've talked to the prosecutor,
1le Q) Okay. And I have to ask you these questions, |18 0 Mr Parks?
12 unfortunately, but have you ever been formerly 18 A Yes.
zo disciplined, or reprimanded? zo 0 Okay. And did you review sither an audio or a
21 A No. 21 video recording of the incident itself?
22 Q Okay. And have you ever been convicted of a | 22 A With Mr. Parks, or just -
23 crime? 23 O Just in preparation for today?
24 A Well, you had a guestion there on my 24 A L have seen it, audio, or listened to an
25 discipline. 25 audio, and ['ve seen a video.
Page & Page 8
1 )} You were looking up, is there something — i ) Okay.
1z A Well, there's a — we have different types of | 2 A But not in preparation for today. I've just
3 discipline, whether it was counseling report, or whether | 3 reviewed them.
4 it was stuff like that, but I had a counseling report | 4 ) In the past?
5 for an accident one time, that where T —- wasn't really | 5 A That is correct.
6 an accident, but I had gone down the median and done | & Q) Olay. And have you been trained in the use of
7 some damage to a car, 7 force by the Missouri State Highway Patrol?
8 Soyougot written up for -- g A Yes, I have.
El A Well, it was a written counseling report, but | % ) Okay. Can vou tell me a little bit about your
10 they're not really considered reprimand, [ don't |10 training?
11 believe, so0... 11 A 1 am a defense tactics instructor. And ['ve
1z ) And when was that? 12 also been trained through the academy, and continuing |
13 A Oh, you're talking 10, 11 vears ago probably, |13 education throughout the years,
14 (3 Okay. Long time ago? 14 Q) You've been trained in the cominuum of force?
15 A Yes, 15 A We do not have a force continoum.
16 Q Okay. And have you ever been convicted of a |16 3 Youdo not?
17 crime? 17 A No.
18 A No, I have not. |18 3 Okay. Why is that?
18 (} Okay. And have you ever been a party to civil |19 A They have taken that out, that it is
20 litigation? lzo outdated —
21 A No, I have not. [21 Q Okay.
2z ) Okay. Never been sued? izz A - type. Their reasonings, you would have to
23 A No, I have not. (23 ask them.
24 () Mever sued anyone, And are you competent and | 24 1} Is there a specific manual or guide -- well,
iz5 of sound mind and body to testify here today? 25

vou say the take it out, they took it out of a specific
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1 manual, or -- 1 you less invelved in that investigation?

2 A Our general orders. 2 A Yes,

3 Q) Your general orders? 3 ) Okay. Did vou meet with Judge Parker?

4 A Yes, 4 A No, T did not.

5 () And is that, is that the Bible, so to speak, 5 ) Did you meet with Lisutenant Satterfield?

& of your training? & A No, I did not.

7 A I wounldn't call it & Bible, but T would call 7 3 Okay. Did vou -- Were you with Sergeant

& it our general orders. & Folsom on the first visit to Jeff Weinhaus' house?

] 3 Okay. And when you are - Are you trainedon | 2 A On August 22nd, ves.

10 how to confront someone who is armed? 10 ) Okav. And whal was the purpose of that visit?

11 A Yes, 11 A To contact Mr. Weinhaus and basically

12 3} And what are you trained to do when you 12 determine what his intentions were pertaining to the

13 confront someone who i1s armed? 13 wvideo.

14 A That's a pretty general question. I guess I'm |12 ) Okay. And what happened when you got to the

15 not really nndersianding what you're asking me. 15 house that day?

18 () How are you trained to — Are you trained to 18 A We arrived, we located the residents, we

17 escalate, or de-escalate the threat? L7 weren't sure which residence was his. The first

12 A I'm trying to use the force that is necessary |18 residence we knocked on, Mr. Weinhaus did answer the

15 to, whether it's just my mere presence, or anything 15 door. He immediately closed the door behind him as he

2¢ above that, but 1I'm trained to, to either diffuse the |20 came out 1o say, I think he said can I help you

21 situation, you know, or -- I den't know how to explain |21 gentlemen, and we explained who we are and why we were

22 it 22 there.

23 0 Olay. 23 And Sergeant Folsom asked why his walk was

24 A Because I guess I'm not sure exactly what |24 surrounded by bushes, so Sergeant Folsom asked, [ believe,

25 you're asking. 25 ifwe could go down into the yard area so we weren't so
Page 10 Page 12

1 0 Well, my question, and perhaps you've answered | 1 confined into one little small area.

2 it there, is that you're, generally speaking, you're 2 0 Okay. And when you went down, what did you

3 trained to diffuse a situation, not to escalate a 3 talk about?

4 sifuation? 4 A Basically, his infentions on the video.

5 A That is correct. 5 3 What did you determine his intentions to be?

& O Okay. And is there, does the threat level to 3 A Mr. Weinhaus claimed that he was a peaceable

7 you automatically go up just because someone is carrying | 7 man, offered to give us a bulletin that he writes, and

g afirearm? g walked over to his truck to give us the bulletin,

] A No. ] Q0 Okay. And was that the end of it? Did you
10 ) Okay. | want to turn 1o the, sort of how this 16 just part ways and separately go about your business?
11 all began, so to speak, which I believe is a complaint (112 A No. We continued to talk about different
12 by Judge Kelly Parker from Crawford County shout a video |12 things. Mr. Weinhaus shared a lot of his views, and the
13 made by my client, Jeff Weinhaus, around mid-August of (13 things like that, of, of different things.

14 2012. 14 I think Sergeant Folsom asked him, or explained
15 Have you seen the video, the YouTube video that |15 that his video didn't seem to be a peaceable video, that a
|16 was the subject of that complaint? 16 layman would look at it and say — 1 think Mr. Weinhans
17 Al have seen that, but it's been a long time. 17 made the comment of, what was the penalty for treason when
18 Q Okay. Did you see the version with captions |18 they were talking about going in and executing people, He
19 or without captions? 18 said that you'll be tried and executed, something to that

20 A 1 would say probably both. 20 effect, in the video.

21 2} Okay. Okay. Did you, did vou investigate 21 And so he asked him about that.

22 that video together with Sergeant Folsom? 22 Q Okay. And were you concerned at that time
23 A No,I did not. 23 that Mr. Weinhaus was breaking any laws?

|24 () Sergeant Folsom previously testified here 24 A Yes.

25 today about his involvernent in that investigation, Were |25 Q Okay. Why7 Tell me about that,

Yin-t -Serlpes Court Reporting Associates (3} Page 9 - Page 12
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1 A That's why we were there. 1 while Sergeant Folsom went and obtained the warrant? l
2 Q Okay. ButImean, in terms of the video. But | 2 A 1 just secured the residence.
3 [ mean at the meeting, at the time of the meeting were | 3 ) Okay. So Sergeant Folsom comes back with a
& you concerned by Mr, Weinhaus' statements, or demeanor, | 4 warrant; is that correct?
5 or behavior that he was doing anything unlawful? 5 A Yes.
3 A Well, if you look at the treason part of it 8 Q) And what was the warrant for'?
7 and I even asked Mr. Weinhaus, T said — he explained | 7 A 1did not read the warrant,
& what it was, and 1 said, well, how are they committing | 8 ) Okay. Dhd you participate in the search?

| & treason, and he said, well, they've perjured themself. | 2 A Yes, 1 did.

110 And then I explained, I said well, perjury is different |10 Q0 Okay, What did you search for?

{11 than treason, they have two different penaliies, and |11 A We searched for the marijuana.

12 just because someone perjurers themself doesn't mean |12 Q Okay.

13 they committed treason. 13 A AndT think the warrant also allowed to search
14 But so as a concern for him saying, or being — |14 for computers, is what 1 was explained, and so we also
15 breaking the law right at that time, no, we were more |15 scarched for the computers, any computer, camera
16 there to investigate the original thing of the video. |16 equipment, stuff like that.

17 ) So you weren't going to arrest him at that 17 } And when you searched the house, did you cnly
18 point? 1g secarch certain areas of the house, or did you search the
139 A No. 15 entire house?

20 ) At that point for threatening Judge Parker, or |20 A We searched every room, but - and we were in
21 anyone else? 21 different places, so [ can't - and I didn't search the

|22 A No. 22 entire house, so [ ean't say what the other people did
|23 ) Okay. And did vou then just leave the house |22 that were in the house.

24 and go about the rest of vour day? 24 ) Did vou only search things that were in plain
25 A No. 25 view, or did you open drawers and things to that effect? |
Page 14 Page 16
1 ) Okay. Why not? i A We would have opened drawers, ves.
2 A Sergeant Folsom, while he was closer to 2 3 And what did you find of interest?
3 Weinhaus, explained to Mr. Weinhaus that he smelled the | 3 A Located a brown paper bag that contained a
4 odor of marijuana whenever he exited the residence, and | 4 green leafy substance that was determined to be
= then also on his person, and told Mr. Weinhaus that he 5 marijuana. Sergeant Folsom searched an area swhere his
& was going to have to secure the residence to geta | 6 back drop was that he used in his videos, and found, 1
T warrant. 7 believe it was some morphine and some other things that
8 ) Could you smell the pot, or not? a8 were of interest, of paraphernalia type things, and
9 A I did not. s then, of course, the computers and cameras were right
10 ¢ And what did you do then? Did you stay at the ;10 there and another set of them upstairs.
11 residence, or did you leave with Sergeant Folsom? |11 (. And I'm going to show you a couple of pictures
12 A [stayed and secured the residence with 12 here.
13 another officer. 13 A Olkay.
14 @ Did you allow Mr. Weinhaus back in his house? |14 () These have already been marked as Exhibit 1,
15 A No, we did not. 15 and perhaps to make it easier on you, I'm not going ta
18 ) And why was that? 16 show you the same piciure in color on my laptop, it's a
17 A To protect anything that was in there of 17 little brighter.
18 evidentiary value. 18 A Okay.
19 } You were worried he might try to flush it down |18 Q Do you recognize this?

j20 the toilet, or spmething? 20 A Yes, I de

21 A Anything that could be destroyed. 21 Q0 And what is that?

122 (3 Is that standard procedure pretty much? 2z A That is a night stand that is next to the bed
23 A That is standard procedure, 23 of, in what T would consider the master bedroom.
24 (} Were you involved in the application for the |24 Q Okay.

I25 warrant, or were you just more securing the residence |25 A Of the residence,
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1 () And do you recognize the firearm and holster | 1 Weinhaus, or words to that effect?
| 2 in there? z A Idonotrecall.

3 A Yes. In the open drawer. 3 ) Did you ever leel personally threatened by

4 0 Do youknow who those belong to? 4+ Jeff Weinhaus?

5 A Yours had gone off. 5 A No. Mr. Weinhaus actually indicated that in

& (3 Screen saver. Do you know who that firearm | 6 one of his podeasts, where he contacted somebody in our

7 and holster belong to7 7 organization, explained that he thooght I was very

8 A We found a receipt, and 1 believe it wastoa | & professional.

g Judy, I do not know how to — 9 ) Okay. Were you aware, ever aware of threats
10 Q Kroft? 10 by Mr. Weinhaus to your parmer, Sergeant Folsom, that
11 A Yes. Idid not know how to say the name, it |11 he should have shot, that he, Mr. Weinhaus, should have
12 starts with a K. 12 shot Sergeant Folsom in the head, or words to that
13 0 Mrs, Weinhans? 13 effect? )

14 A His wife is how he identified her, 14 A I'm mot sure if he said T should have shot him
15 ) Okay. And was the clip -- Are you fanuliar 15 In the head. I think it was more, I could have shot him
16 with this type of holster? 15 in the head in the video, [ do remember that.
17 A [ am not familiar with this type of holster. |17 Because Sergeant, I believe Sergeant Folsom
18 0} Okay. Do you know if this is the gun and the |18 thought I was done writing the search warrant return, and
19 holster that was later used at the incident of the MFA '13 we were in two different areas of the property, so when he
20 station? 20 released the property to Mr. Weinhaus, he thought we were
21 A It is similar, but to say that it is the exact 21 ready to go, but I still had to fill out the — a couple
22 same gun, [ eannot. 2z lines on the return, I believe it was. And of course,
23 ) Okay. Do you know if the clip on this holster |23 immediately 1 thought, oh, there's a gun in there.
24 can be reversed, or changed, so it can be worn on either |22 But he had been precty docile that day, and him
25 the right or the lefi-hand side of the body? 25 and I did not have a problem, at that peint I dide't think
Page 18 | Paga 20

1 A Ido not know that. 1 him and Sergeant Folsom had a major problem, but after

2 ) Okay. I'm not going to ask you to speculate, 2 seeing the video I realized he was more upsct than what 1

3 okay, at any bme. 31 had realized.

4 A Okay. 4 0 Do you think he was under the influence of

5 3} If you know, you know, and if you don't, you | 5 anything on the day you visited his house?

& don't, and that's fine. 6 A I do not recall his - exactly what my

7 So were you aware that after your search of the | 7 thoughts of him were at that time.

& house that my client went on to make additional YouTube | =8 Q' Okay. Okay. You didn't think he was stoned

o videos? s on pot?

10 A Yes. 10 A I'm not sure. In fact, I think one of the

11 ) And to your knowledge, did any of them single |11 guys that came to help with the secority made a comment
12 out your partner, Sergeant Folsom? 1z that said he was under the influence of something.
13 A Yes, they did. 13 And I'm a — 1 used to be a drug recognition
14 ) And to your knowledpe, did Sergeant Folsom |14 expert, but 1 just did not pay attention. I was more
15 reccive personal e-mails and other commumications from |15 worried about security. He continually wanted to get back
16 my client? 16 im the truck to light cigarettes, and things like that, so
17 A | believe he did. 17 1 was more worried about personal security and security
18 Q Okay. 18 for the other officer that was there, than [ was, really,
18 A | cannot say that for sure, but | believe he |15 analyzing his level of intoxication, or --

20 did. 20 Q Sure.

21 Q To vour knowledge, were some of them 21 A - or lack of.

2z threatening? 22 Q0 Do you have concerns about the gun on the day
23 A 1 do not recall. 23 you searched the house?

24 ) Okay. Did your partner - Did Sergeant Folsom |24 A You'll have to explain that question.

25 ever make statements to you, | feel threatened by Jleff |25 () Well, do you have concerns about vour safety

Wil
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1 if there was a gun? 1 A Idid not contact anyone.

2 A When we were in the house I did not, because | 2 ) Who did make contact with the officer?

3 we were in the house and no one else was. Prior to | 3 A Tt would have been Sergeant Folsom, And [ do

4 getting into the house, T did not know there was a gun | 4 not know who he spoke with.

5 in there. 5 ) Okay. And how did you make contact with Jeff,

8 Q Do you know who else lives in the house? & himself?

7 A | believe it was his son possibly, and his -- 7 A I did not make contact with Jeff.

g the lady he identified as his wife. 8 ) Sergeant Folsom did?

] (} Do you know who brought the marijuana into the | 9 A Yes.

10 house? 10 Q) To vour knowledge, did Jeff kmow that he was
11 A That I do not, 11 going to get arrested?

12 (@ Did Jeff or any of the other nccupants of the |12 A You're asking me to speculate what Jelf

13 house ever make any statements to you about who had {13 thought?

14 brought the marijuana into the house? 14 Q) No, no. I'm asking if you knew whether Jeff
15 A No, 15 knew he was going to be arrested?

16 0 Okay. Iwantto skip forward then to the 18 A IF I knew if Jeff —

17 incident of September 11th, 2012, 17 ) If Jeff had knowledge that he was going to be |
l18 A Yes. {18 arrested?
i1g My understanding is that you and vour pariner, ' 19 A Idonot know.

20 Serpeant Folsom, were executing an arrest warrent on |20 Q0 Did vou or your partner -- Did yvou make any
21 Jeff Weinhaus that day; is that comect? |21 statements to Jeff — I guess you didn't, strke that.
22 A That is correct. 22 Do you know if your partner made any statements
23 Q Who issued that warrant, do you know? 23 to Jeff on the phone, stuff as, we need to bring you in to
24 A The Franklin County Circuit Court, I believe. |24 arrest you, or --

25 () Okay. Andwere you invalved in the obtaining |25 A No, he did not,

Page 22 Page 24

1 of that warrant? 1 3 And in fact, you told, you -- your partner

3 A No, Twas not. 2 told Jeff that the purpose of the meeting was for

3 Q0 Okay. 3 something else; didn't he?

4 A I was present, but [ did not write the 4 A That is correct.

s probable cause. 1should clarify that. 5 (0 And what was that?

£ ) Who did write the probable cause? 5 A To return his computer equipment.

T A I do believe it was Sergeant Folsom. 7 ) Okay, Was that a ruse?

8 } And who did you notify about the warrant after | & A Yes, it was.

5 you obtained 1t? ] Q@ And where did you arrange to meet Jeff, or
10 A [ did not notify anyone, 16 where did your pariner, rather, arrange to meet Jeff?
11 } Do you know if your partner, Sergeant Folsom, (11 A He arranged to meet Mr. Weinhaus at the MFA
1z notified anyone? 1z (il station on route, I think it's K, king. K as in
13 A Yes, I believe he notified, probably our 13 king.

14 staff, be guess, and that's speculation, but also, the {12 Q And were you involved in the selection of that
15 FBI, and T believe it was the Franklin County Sheriff's |15 location?

15 Department. 16 A [donot recall.

17 0 1s it your normal practice to notify the 17 Q2 Okay.

18 sheriff, the county sheriff? |18 A 1 know 1 went there to observe the location,
12 A Just depends on the situation in the county. |15 but whether I was involved in the actual selection of
29 Q Okay. You don't feel -- Do vou feel you have |zo it, I'm not sure.

21 an obligation or a courtesy to notify the sheriff? 21 Q Why didn't you just have Jeff come into a

e A Twould say that depends upon the situation |2z highway patrol station?

23 and the officer who's doing it. 23 A 1don't know.

24 {J Do you know who vou contacted at the sheriff's |24 @ Okay. Or why didn't you have him come in,
25 office in this instance? 25 say, the sheriff's department?
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1 A Idon't know. 1 3 Is it normal procedure for a trooper who has
2 0 Okay. Were you concerned about your safety at | 2 been personally singled out to go and execute an arrest |
3 the MFA station? 3 warrant on that person, on the person making the threat?
4 A No, I was not. 4 A In different situations, yes.
5  Okay. Did you request backup? | 5 @ Okay. Well, and why would that be normal
& A Yes, we did. § procedure?
7 Q0 Okay. Tell me about that. 'Who was your 7 A Because the way you worded your question,
g backup? g if-- and I'll give you an example, if' | have an
s A And 1 will clarify that. I did not request 3 investigation where a trooper's been threatened by
10 backup. Sergeant Folsom requested backup. 10 somebody, they'll - I go investigate it instead of the
11 Okay. 11 trooper.
12 A It would have been the two FBI agents from the (12 Sinee this was already an active investigation
13 Raolla office, the field office, and then we also 13 prior to Mr. Weinhaus making the threat, Sergeant Folsom
14 requested, or Sergeant Folsom also requested two marked |14 is case agent, so in that case usually that case would
15 patrol units, or two uniformed patrol units to also come |15 stay with the investigating officer.
16 to the aresa. 15 ) Were you concerned that the presence of
17 Q Okay. Did Sergeant Folsom also requestthe |17 Sergeant Folsom would provoke Jeff Weinhaus?
18 FBI agent? 13 A No, I was not.
13 A I'm sorry? |19 O Okay, And did you konow at the fime whether
120 Q Did Sergeant Folsom also request that the FBI |20 Jeff was recording by audio, or video, or both, the
21 be involved? 21 meeting at the MFA station?
22 A Yes. 22 A No, 1 did not.
23 Q And why was that? 23 ) Subsequent to the incident, you've since
24 A We work closely with them on a lot of things. |24 learned that he was recording?
25 They were, had been kept abreast of the situation where, |25 A Yes,
Page 26 Page 28
| 1 of the podcasts, and had prior knowledge of 1 @ Andhad you ever reviewed those recordings in
2z Mr. Weinhaus, it was a logical choice. 2 the past?
3 @ There were no federal charges, to your 3 A Yes
4 knowledpe, involved in this arrest, were there? 4 (Q Tell me about where you and your partner
5 A No 5 parked to wait for Jeff.
g ) Okay. Did you wear a bullet resistant vest? & A 1hbelieve L, if I have my directions right, —
7 A No, [ did not. T 3 Okay,
] Q Okay. Andwhy not? 8 A —T parked on the, kind of the northwest end
3 A [In the job that [ am assigned to as a criminal | 8 of the parking lot, kind of above the station there a
10 investigator, we're not required to wear them on a daily (10 litile bit
11 basis. 1T () How many vards was it away from the station?
12 Sergeant Folsom and 1 had discussed putting them |12 A I do not know,
13 on while we were waiting for Mr, Weinhaus, and neither of |13 ) Guesstimate for me. | mean, just within 30,
14 us really had determined him to be a threat in that type |14 was it 100, was it —
15 of a manner, so we had chose not to put our vests on. |15 A I'd say between 20 and 40.
16 Q) Were you concerned at the time that Jeffwould (16 @ Okay. And where did the FBI agenis park?
17 hbring along other people? 17 A Omnce Mr. Weinhaus had said that he was going
18 A Yes. 18 to bring other people, we went ahead and had them
19 Q) And were you concerned that would elevate the |15 stationed on the opposite side of the parking lot, so if
20 threat, potential threat level? 20 there was other vehicles, they would have direct access
21 A Yes. 21 to those vehicles to come up from behind and provide
2z Q Okay. Were you aware - You previcusly 22 assistance with security, and things like that.
23 testified that Jeff had made threats, personally, 23 (3 Did you have a clear and unobstructed view of
24 against your partner; is that fair to say? 24 the FBI agents?
25 A That is fair to say. 25 A Partially.
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1} Partially clear and unobstructed? 1 uphill?
2 A Yes. Z A If you're coming from the entrance to the
3 () So what was the other part? 3 parking lot to my vehicle, I believe it was a slight
4 A Wewere - We had a clear view of them, and | ¢ incline. '
5 then just prior to Mr. Weinhaus getting there, a vehicle | 5 Q Okay. And so what happened onee Jeff got to
& pulled in and blocked them, where they — and it was, 1 | & the situation, tell me what -- he got to the station,
7 think it was a guttering, somebody working on the | 7 Let's start with, what did you observe about his
8 guttering, and had partially blocked them, and I think | &8 arrival?
9 they were in the process of moving whenever Mr, Weinhaus | 8 A He was driving a green Subaru.
10 pulled in to get, have a better view. 10 } Okay. And then what happened when he pulled
11 ) Okay. Did the gpulter people ask them to move, |11 mto the station?
1z the FBI agents? 12 A And when he pulled into the packing lot, 1
13 A 1 do not know that. 13 noticed Mr. Weinhaus was taking his seat belt off. 1
14 ) Did you have - So there's you, there's the 14 found that odd and it kind of heightened my sense of
15 FBI agents, there's the gutter puys. There are two 15 awareness, and - Because usually we're taught that in
16 putter guys? 16 the academy to get -- to make sure whenever we pull up
17 A 1 do not recall. 17 tosomeplace and we're going to get out, even on traffic
18 (} Okay. Was there anyone clse at the scene? 18 stops, to make sure you have that seat belt ready.
15 A I believe they've interviewed other witnesses, |12 And I mean, it was identical to what we do, and
22 but I do not know. 2o it just canght me like, oh, that's not right, so —
21 ) Were they outdoors, or indoors, do vou know? |21 ) And it increased your -- it escalated the
22 A 1 do not know, 22 situation, is that fair to say?
23 } Did you have concerns that, for example, the |23 A No. I would say it heightened my level of
24 gutrer guys might be with Jeff? 24 awareness.
25 A 1did not. Mainly because I think whenever we |25 Q2 Okay, And when Jeff drove into the station, |
Page 30 Page 32
1 first went and looked at the station, I believe that | 1 what route did his car take before he came to a stop?
2 that truck was there, if | remember correctly, so it did | 2 A His car came into the parking lot and he made
3 not cause me alarm at the time. 3 acircle, like he was going toward the, which would
4 ) Did you have concern before Jeff's arrival 4 be the -- he's going toward the front of the store,
5 that, that allies, or friends of Jeff were lurking in 5 perpendicular to the store, but almost to the side of
& the area somewhere? & the store, which he didn't reach all the way to the side
7 A [was more concerned that he would just bring | 7 of the store, but then made a complete circle around the
g people with him, if that answers your question. g parking lot and faced the same direction I was facing,
] Q Okay. It does. Thank you. 9 but probably 20 to 30 feet away from my vehicle, and
10 A Dkay. 10 prabably 1510 20 feet, his front end, versus my front
11 ) And then between your partner's contact with |11 end. His front end was probably 15 to 20 feet more
12 Jeffand Jeff's arrival at the station, how long was 12 forward than my vehicle.
13 that, about? How long did you wait? 13 (} Did the way he park escalate the situation?
14 A [ don't know, 15 minutes maybe. 14 A Again, I would say that it heightened my sense
1s } Okay. And from the entrance to the station, 15 of awareness of the situation.
16 from the Highway K, to where you were parked, is that |16 Q0 Why would that be, specifically?
17 level, or is that on an incline, or decline? 17 A Because that gives him a tactical advantage
18 A If1recall correctly, I believe that was ona |18 over us. He's parked his where he — especially me,
19 wvery slight decline where I parked at to the — going |18 because I'm on the side that where his car is, and
20 down to the store, if that makes sense. 20 Sergeant Folsom has cover on the other side with the
21 Q0 Sothe store was uphill from where you were? |21 engine block and things, as we're taught in the academy,
{22 A No. The store would have been downhill from |22 but it definitely heightened my sense of awareness.
{23 where I was, 23 0 Would the way he parked be reasenable if the
24 €2 5o from the entrance 1o the parking lot, to 24 purpose was 10 load computer equipment into the back of
25 where you were, was a slight incline? It was a slight |2z5 the Subaru?
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1 A Merespeculation, not really. 1 A Well, after reviewing the, the watch video
2 } Why would that be unreasonahle? Z that Mr. Weinhaus had on, vou can hear Sergeant Folsom
3 A IfIwas going to unload heavy computers, 3 saying something, how you doing, Jeff, I believe,
4 which I think I carried the box today, so T know it's | ¢ something like that.
5 heavy, and it's not a — I would have parked closer if | s (3 What was the tone and cadence of Sergeant
& it was me, I would have parked maybe towards the back of | & Folsom's speech?
7 the vehicle, not past the front of the vehicle. 1 would | 7 A Normal.
| 8 nothave gone that far to do that. &  (} What was this tone and cadence of Jeff
s 0 Butitwould be reasonable to put these big 2 Weinhaus' speech?
10 heavy computers into the back of the Subaru? Yeg orno? |10 A Idon't know his normal speech, other than
11 A I'msorry? 11 what I've talked to him in the past, but it didn't seem
1z 0 Itwould be reasonable to put these big, heavy |12 different at first.
13 computers into the back of the Subaru? 13 @ Ohjectively, was his speech agitated, or was
14 A Yes, I would say it would be reasonable to de |14 it at more of, kind of a slow, friendly banter leve],
15 that, ves. 15 or—
16 Q And what happened once Jeff came to a stop? |16 A There wasn't time for friendly banter, or
17 A Sergeant — Well, as he was coming in, |17 even —and [ couldn't say what, one way or the other
18 Sergeant Folsom and [ exited the vehicle, and after that |18 how his voice was. I'm not sure I understand.
13 1lost sight of Jeff for a few moments, 50 I'm not sure |19 Q Okay. So Jeff gets out of the car, you can't
20 how and when he got out of the vehicle, {20 see him, your partner starts talking to him, what
21 0 When Jeff did get out of the vehicle, what did |21 happens next?
22 he do? Didhe — a2 A Now I didn't say I can't see him, because I'm
23 A I lost sight of him. 23 sure if T would have turned and looked, T could have
24 ' You lost sight of him? 24 seen him.
25 A Yes. 25 3 Okay, |
Page 34 Page 35 |
1 3 So how high was the Subaru? 1 A Butaswe're getting out of the car, Sergeant
2 A ldid not measure it. 2 Folsom — I had already shut my car door, and we had —
3 Q Okay. But was it the height of a regular 3 the windows were down, and Sergeant Folsom said, as we
4 sedan, or was it higher, such as like an SUV, or a 4 were getting out, he said, hey, pop the trunk to support
5 truck? 5 the ruse we're going to give the computers back.
5 A 1 believe it was a Forester, so it's moreofa | 6 So I turned back around to pop the trunk to
7 boxy, and it's a little bit taller than what I would 7 reach into the, we had — there's a litile trunk release
8 think the Subaru Outback is, so I'd say maybe, if you're | &8 up next to the headlights, so I reached in there, did
9 standing on level ground, maybe chest high, maybea | 2 that, and then T went around to the hack of the trunk and
10 little bit somewhere in there I would think. 1e lifted the trunk.
11 ) Uh-huh, 11 But I don't know what he did from the time where
1z A The top of it. 12 I was told to go back to the, or to pep the trunk, and go
13 @ Okay. When Jeff -- If Jeff was standing next |13 back to the trunk.
14 to the car, could yvou see over the top of the car and |14 Q Do you know if Jeff stood still, or if he was
15 see his head? 15 walking around once he got out of the car?
15 A Ifit was on level ground, but he would have |18 A Well, he would have had te walk, because he
17 been on the low side in that parking lot. 17 was away from his vehicle whenever I turned.
i1e Q Okay. Did you talk to Jeff when he got out of {18 Q Okay. So to your knowledge, he did not stand
19 the car? 19 still, or --
20 A No. I was instruocted to open the trunk and — |20 A With my knowledge, he —
21 Q Who instructed you? 21 Q --youdon't know?
2z A BSergeant Folsom. 22 A Tomy knowledge, he had to move away from his
23 0 Okay. Did Sergeant Folsom talk to Jeff? 23 vehicle, because he was not standing right next to his
24 A Yes, 24  vehicle.
25 Q And what did he say, do you recall? 25 Q Okay. And to your knowledge, when you say
Yiim-L-Sorlptk Court Reporting Associates (9) Page 33 - Pape 36
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1 move away from the vehicle, do you mean he was walking | 2 ) And was the gun pointing down to the ground in

2 towards Sergeant Folsom? 2 what your partner called a low ready, or was it pointed
3 A He would have been in the - from his vehicle, | 3 at Jeff Weinhaus, or something else?
4 he would have been in the direction of Sergeant Folsom, | 4 A Now low ready would be different than what T
5 yes. s was doing.
& ) Perhaps taking steps forward -- Strike that. g Q Okay.
7 Not perhaps. Was takang steps towards him? 7 A So alow ready is where you have it down,
8 A I would assume so. g pointing down toward the ground. Mine was more of a, to
5 ) Okay. Did you see that? 5 protect my weapon, basically, in case something else
10 A No 16 should come out, [ wasn't sure Ifanybody else was in
11 Q Okay. And at this point, what was your 11 the car.
12 awareness of the situation, to vse your phrase? 12 I was on the SWAT team and we did that a iot as
13 Were you concerned about an escalation, or ofa |13 we're going through buildings, because you don't want to
14 threat level? 14 have vour gun ol and come sroond the corner and somebody
15 A T was aware of how he pulled in, [ was aware |15 take your gun away from your hand, so T was here until I
15 of the seat belt, I knew it heightened my level of |16 got to where I knew 1 was, | was in the position you
17 awareness, but as soon as Sergeant Folsom told me to do |17 previeusly deseribed, until 1 got to where I was poing to.
18 that, my concentration became on the trunk, o support |18 And you say you saw Jeff Weinhaus, and first
19 that ruse, because he's my supervisor, so Ido what he |19 of all, what did vou see on Jeff Weinhaus?
20 tells me. {20 A I noticed he was wearing nice clothes, a tie,
31 So 1 went to do that, and as I'm epening the iz:. I believe, and I saw the holster.
2z trunk, or after I've opened the trunlk, or shortly in that |22 Q Okay. So where was the holster on Jeff?
23 time period | hear Sergeant Folsom asking him about the |23 A [t was on his = [t wasn't on his hlp, It was
24 gun on his side. {2+ on the front side an the right,
a5 Q) You heard the word gun? |25 } Okay. Could you stand up, sir, please, if you
Page 38 Page 40
1 A Idon't know if he said gun, pistol, firearm. 1 don't mind. And could you point on your body where his
|2 Q Sure 2 holster was?
3 A But something to that effect. 3 A It would be right here on the right side, at
4 0 And what did your hearing that word, what | 4 the belt level. '
5 reaction did that cause in you? | & Q So let the record reflect that the witness has
& A Well, immediately, T turned and I saw Jeff | s pointed to the right-hand side of his belt, just to the
7 Weinhans standing toward the back end, and away from his | 7 ight of the belt buckle, but in front of the right hip
g8 vehicle, but not at the back end, but kind of away, but | 8 bone?
5 toward the backside of his vehicle, if that malkes sense. 9 A That is correct.
10} Uh-huh, Lo ) Okay. And was this the green holster we [
11 A And immediately drew my weapon. I could hear |11 previously saw in that photograph, or a holster that |
12 them talking. 12 looked like that green holster?
13  Okay, Let me stop vou there, You drew vour (13 A It was a similar holster to that green one.
14 weapen, What position do you have when you drew your [14 Tt could have been the same one. I do not know.
15 weapon? |15 2 And vou testified you're not familiar with
1§ A I'msorry? 116 this holster?
17 Q What position were you holding your firearm in |17 A I am not.
{18 once you drew your weapon? 118 Q0 Was the holster covered, or uncovered?
18 A L I believe I brought it to here. 18 Somry. Excuse me,
20 [Indicating]. 20 Was the gun in the holster covered, or
21 ) S0 let the record reflect the witness is 21 uncovered?
22 holding his right hand at about his mid-chest level. |22 A As I'm approaching, the gun Is covered.
23 A Almost to the pectoral. 23 Q Okay. And was the grip or butt of the gun,
za ) The rght pectoral? 24 was it facing forward, or back -- in a cross-draw type
25 A Yes. 25 position, or backward?
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m

but 1 knew from my trunk to him, | had a clear sight of

25

1 A If I recall correctly — I do not know. 1 him, and T was trying to get to where I had some type of
2 Q' Youdon't know. Okay. Did — And where was | 2 a cover in ease something did happen, so [ was going to
3 Jeffs hand, right hand, when you first looked overat | 3 his vehiele, so —
4 him and saw this, this holster? 4 (3 Anunreascnable inference at some point before
5 A Down to his side, as far as I can remember. | 5 vou looked over, he must have moved from the driver's
[ ) His right hand was down on his right-hand & seat of the vehicle to standing?
7 side? ? A That is correct.
g A 1 think he was standing there with his hands = & 3 Okay. And what happened after -- What
! 5 down to his side. g staterments did you hear Jeff say, if any?
10 0 Okay. Andhis left hand was also down athis (10 A Whenever I hear Sergeant Folsom asking him if
11 side? 11 he had a gun, or why he had a gun, or something to that |
12 A 1 believe so, ves. 12 effeet, T furned and T saw the holster, and 1 heard him |
13 (3 Onhis left -- left hand on the left-hand 13 say, why do you have vour gun, or something to that
14 side, right hand on the nght-hand side? 14 effect.
15 A That is correct. 15 ) Okay., Let me stop you there. When Jeff said
16 Q) Okay. Was the night hand touching the gun of |16 like, why do you have your gun, or something to that
17 the holster? 17 effect, what type of comment did you take, did you hear
18 A AsI approached, he did touch the holster, |18 that to be, in terms of the characterization?
1% ves, 1% Was it a smart alec comment, obroxious comment,
20 0 Okay. And what did you observe him do once he |20 was it a threatening comment?
21 touched the holster? 21 Was it just a factual question?
22 A As I'm approaching, he grabs the flap of the 22 A 1 just took it as that's what he said.
23 holster, and 1 see it go — be pulled down, and then he |23 (0 Did his statement escalate the threat level in
|24 lets go of it, and T could see that it popped open, and |24 vour situation, in your opinion?
|25 then he stuck his hand back down to his side. 25 A Absolutely.
Page 42 Fage 44
1 & Okay. And so he pulled down and the holster | 1 Q0 Invour training and experience, if someone
2 pops open, and then he, where does he move his right | 2 has a gun, are you suppesed to use verbal commands to
3 hand next? 3 try to take control of the situation?
4 A He puts it down to his side. 4 A Yes.
5 ) Touching the gun, ot no? 5 ) Olaay. And are the verbal commands supposed to
6 A No. He puts it down to the side, and he gives | 6 distract from the gun? Distract the person from the
7 us like a little cold chill. 7 gun,
8 ) What does that mean, a cold chill? 8 A 1 never heard that, no.
g A Kind of lilkke a shiver; began to shake. As § Q) Okay. What type of verbal commands,
10 soon as he put his hand down, I saw him give a quick |10 typically, or what is the purpose of verbal commands
11 shiver. 11 when someone has a firearm and you're trying to
1z ¢ Like a twitch almost? 12 de-escalate the situation?
13 A Yes. 13 A Trying to gain control of the situation.
14 ¥ And was he standing or moving at the time? |14 ) And can you give me an example of the type of
15 A He was standing still. 15 werbal commands you might give?
16 ) He was standing still. So he moved to the 16 A Well, I'll give you an example. Just a couple
17 end, or just past his vehicle, and had stopped and was |17 weeks ago, maybe last week, we went to a house where,
18 standing still when vou saw him doing this? 18 with another officer reference some horse abuse, and we
19 A Now | did not see him move, as we discussed |12 went there and a 16-year-old girl came out of the house
20 earlier. 20 with a rifle, and we were in plain clothes, and of
212 Right. Tunderstand. 21 course I said, I told her to put the pun down, highway
22 A But where [ saw him, he was standing at the |22 patrol, and $o she puts the gun down,
23 back of ihe — almost even with the back of the vehicle |23 50 that was — That's how I diffused that
24 maybe, and maybe a little bit back, I'm not real sure, |24 situation. If that's what you're asking me.

) Sure. So using the actual word gun, or
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1 drawing the person's attention to the gun in itselfcan | 1 shoot me.
2 be part of the verbal commands? 2 ) Could he have said -
3 A Oh, absolutely. 3 A Or you're going to have to Kill me,
4 ) Andthen after Jeff said why do yvou have a 4 0 Could he have said you den't have to shoot me,
5 gun, or words to that effect, what happened next? 5 oryou don't have to kill me?
§ A 1 think one of them said, I think it was g A No, no,
7 Sergeant Folsom said semething about being authorized to | 7 3 Okay.
& have a gun, and I think Weinahus replied, well, I'm | & A Absolutely not.
5 authorized to have a gun, too. g 3 And when Serpeant Folsom ordered Jeff 1o get
10 And I think that's when mayhe Sergeant Folsom |10 down on the ground, did Jeff take any actions in
11 was telling him to get on the ground, and I was telling (12 compliance with his order?
1z him to get on the ground also. 12 A Absolutely not.
13 ) And that was to de-escalate the threat level? |13 ) Did he put his hands in the air?
14 A Absolutely. 14 A No, he did not.
15 ) Andin the course of this back and forth you (15 @ So his right hand did not go in the air?
16 just described to me, did Jeff take any actions at that 16 A No.
17 point? 17 ) Lecft hand did not go in the air?
|18 A I'm sorry? Bk 3 A No.
13 ) What did he do? Did he walk anywhere, did he 113 ) Did he turn his body left or right?
20 do anything with his hands while this conversation was |20 A Mo, he did not.
21 going on? 21 ) Did he bend his knees, or take any actions to
2z A Well, it happened so fast, it's almost like it |2z lower himself?
23 happened all at the same time. 23 A Nuo, he did not.
24 0 I understand this iz a very short period of 24 3 Okay, And what did he do?
25 time. 25 A He reached nnder the flap of the holster,
Page 48 Page 48
1 A And as soon as that little banter was done, or | 1 ) Okay. Let me stop vou there, When you say he |
2 almost in that same lirtle banter, he says -- and I'm | 2 reached, with which hand did he reach? |
3 telling him to get down on the ground, and I'm, | think | 3 A With the right hand, I believe.
4 I'm still walking toward him at that time, and I'm | 4 Q2 Okay. And what was his left hand doing at the
5 saying, get on the ground, get on the ground, whatever | 5 time?
& I'm saying, and he doesn't look at me, he never -1 | 5 A I don't recall.
7 don't think he ever even looked at me. 7 ) Okay. Could it have been with the right hand?
8 0 Where was he looking? 8 A 1 justsaid it was with the right hand.
g A He was looking at Sergeant Folsom. So ] Q Oh, did you?
10 immediately 1 know he's out by himself, he has no cover, ]-:LD A Yes.
11 there's no immediate -- | mean, there's a tree that's |11 Q Okay.
12 probably, guesstimate, probably 20 yards away, that's a |12 A That he reached down with the l'ight hand.
13 good-sized tree, but — and then there's some wooded (13 () Bui could his left hand have been reaching
14 area really far away, and he would have to either come {14 over toward his right hand?
15 back to the car, or get to that tree, or something like |15 A Oh, absolutely.
16 that, so I'm more concerned with him loeking at Sergeant |16 ) But you're not sure?
17 Folsom, and that's when he said — was telling him to |17 A I'm not sure.
18 get on the ground. He said you're poing to have to ila } And when you say the right hand was, he
1s shoot me, man, or you're going to have to shoot me, |15 reached under the holster?
20 whatever he said. {20 A He reached under the flap of the holster,
21 () Letme stop you right there. So you said {21 @ Okay. And did you see his hand touch the gun?
22 whatever he said, 2z A Yes. And then to correet something earlier,
23 Are you sure that he sa1d you're going to have |23 or to expound on something earlier, vou asked me which
24 to shoot me? 24 way was the gun facing, Tt would have to have been
i5 A I'm positive he said you are going to have to (25 facing, just out of my mind, It would have to have been
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1 facing with the butt of the gun to the right, because | 1 ()} And how many shots did he make, do you '
| 2 thai's the hand he reached under and gripped the gun | 2 remember?
| 3 with. 3 A 1 know from the report, but 1 did not know at
| 4 3 And because vou testified earlier the holster 4 the time. I think it was four,
| 5 was on the right front of his body, you could see his | s 2 Okay. And what did vou do?
i & hand touching the butt of the gun, or the grip of the & A As T heard the shots go off, T was getting my
7 gun? 7 sight picture.
8 A Yeah, Tt was either the right, or - Yeah. g Q Okay.
2 Now I'm actually kind of confused. ['m not sure if he | = A And mine were in between his, somewhere in
10 reached up with the left or the right. 10 there, 50...
11 Okay. 11 ) And did you open fire?
1z A Butl know he reached to the gun. 1I'm almost |12 A Yes, I fired my firearm.
13 positive it was the right, though. 13 ) Where did you aim?
14 Okay. And did you see -- Well, back up. 14 A Taimed at Jeffrey Weinhaus' head.
15 Did vou see — What angle was Jeff relative to |15 (2 And what does vour training teach vou?
16 you at this time? 16 A Head and chest to stop the threat.
17 A He would have probably been at my, on a clock, |17 (3 Cardiothoracic and brain, And where were you
18 as I'm facing him, he would have probably been at my one |18 looking at Jeff's body? At the head?
1% o'clock position. 13 A At the head. It was the biggest target | had |
20 )} Okay. And was he bladed towards vou? 20 at the time, and so I'd say that's probably why [ went i
21 A No. Hewas bladed towards me. No, he was not |21 to there, would be my assumption is why I went to the |
22 bladed towards me. 1 could see his full side, his full |22 head, becanse he's bladed and he's a thin man.
23 left side and the front of him. 23 (3 So he is bladed?
24 0 Okay. And what was his stance at the time? |24 A Not bladed as in a runner's stance, but I'm
25 Did he have his feet together, one in front of the 25 looking at the side of him.
Pags 50 m
1 other? 1 Q Okay.
2 A ldon't know. It would have been probably | z A He is not bladed to Sergeant Folsom. He is,
3 side-by-side, but not like — just lile a regular person | 3  his side, his side is toward me, so 1 have a shorter
4 stance, he was not standing in a, like a runner’s 4 view of him. I can see just the front part of him, but
5 stance, or anything like that. T believe he was just | 5 [ can see his full side to include part of his back.
& standing square. £ ()} So he's front on to Sergeant Folsom?
7 3 Okay. And he didn't have one foot turned, or | 7 A Yes.
g one foot behind the other? g (0 And you're seeing him more in profile almost?
3 A 1donot recall. 3 A Yes,
io 3 Okay. And so his hand goes down towards the |10 3 And 20 vou open -- What was beyond Jeff when
11 gun, And what happened next? 11 vou were firing at him? In the back, sir, behind him,
1z A [ heard Sergeant Folsom's firearm go off, and |12z in the background of your shooting.
13 T had - 13 A In my sight picture, or in Sergeant Folsom's?
14 () Okay. Stop right there. Had Jeff actually 14 Q) In your sight picture,
15 pulled the pun out of the holster, or had he just put |15 A In my sight picture it would have been the
1¢ his hand to the gun? 1§ side of the building, pariially. it was more of the side
17 A 1 believe he had just put his hand to the gun, (17 than it was the front
18 had pripped it, something to that effect where there was |18 The front, I could see the full front, but it
15 a viable threat there. 15 was more the side. Then there was some old gas pumps,
20 ) Okay. Did you ever see the entirety of the 20 looked like they had been cannibalized to repair other
21 gun being pulled cut by Jeff? 21 pumps, looked like parts that were missing, but that's
22 A No, 1did not. 22 what was to the side, in my view past Mr. Weinhaus.
23 (} Okay. Do you — Okay. And then you heard |23 ) And in fact, there were bullets later
‘za Sergeant Folsom fire, open fire? lz4 recovered from that building, weren't there?
25 A Yes, I heard his gun go off. 25 A I think there was a, for lack of better words,

Court Reporting Associates

(13) Page 49 - Pape 52



STATE OF MISSOURI v. Franklin County, MO No. 12AB-CRO2409-01 SCOTT MERTENS
JEFFREY R. WEINHAUS B June 6, 2013
Page 53 Page 55

[
=]

W m -~ ;oo W R

[
=]

11
12
13
14
15
16
17
1a
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

Wwom o~ W e e bk

B pd e el e A b b e e
S W .~ hon e W

21
22
23
24
25

4 divot in the building down low, where it was -- where
there was a bullet that had struck. I don't know if
they recovered a bullet there, or not.

} Were you concerned aboul flammable gas tanks
being hit by your bullet?

A No, I was not. There was none there,

) Were you concerned that Sergeant Folsom's
sight picture might have a gas tank?

A At that time [ was not concerned about
Sergeant Folsom's sight picture as 1 was mine.

) And did you see Teff's reaction once he was
shot?

A Yes.

) Okay. And what was it?

A [ saw Sergeant Folsom's, [ saw his shirt,
Jeftfrey Weinhaus' shirt move, so I knew Sergeant Folsom
had hit him, and that was while I was also filing.

() Let me stop you right there. When you say
moved, what do you mean, that his body turned left or
right, or you just saw --

A No, I could see the shirt move.

QA ripple in the shirt?

A A ripple for lack of a better word, sure.

Q) And then what did Jeff's body do once he was
shot?

O o @ - ;o o e B

whenever he turned away from me, so -- But they were
still down, in the downward position, when they were on
the side,

1 do know they were still on the gun, because
whenever Sergeant Felsom went to approach him, he told me
he's still got his hand on the gun.

) Did he ever put his hands up in the air at any
point?

A Absolutely not.

) Oh, okay. Not io the left or to the right?

A No.

) Ihd you see Jefl's, | guess, did you see
Jeff's eyes at any point?

A Can 1 go back to that question? T will say he
never raised his hands in a motion to say I'm okay, I'm
surrendering, or I'm okay.

And now whether he was talking and moving his
hands, I don't recall that. But he never motioned his
hands in a way to sav okay, I'm complving with what you're
saying.

) Okay, Were you concerned aboul the roofers
after the shooting?

A [was not concerned about the roofers after
the shooting.

Q Okay. Were you concerned that Jeff might have

Page 54

A From his position he, where he was facing
Sergeant Folsom, he turned 180 degrees and fell forward,

(3 Did he turn to his left, counter-clockwise, or
turn to his right clockwise?

A He would have turned to, clockwise to his
right. Turned away from me and --

() 5o bhe had his back to you almost as he went
down?

A Well, no.

Q0 Okay.

A He turned 180 degrees, so now 'm leoking at
his left side whenever he fell.

2 Youmean his night side?

A T'm sorry. Yes, his right side.

) So he turned like this, clockwise to his
ripght, and that's when he went down?

A Yes.

J Did he fall on his face, on his knees?

A He fell on his face.

) And after, right after you shot him, but
before he fell, where were his hands?

A Down to his side still.

Q0 Down to his sides?

A Well, down to his sides, down to the Jower
portion. They weren't -- [ had lost sight of his hands

(TN . ST TS R U =
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backup, for Jack of a befter word, that might be
armving at the scene, or hidden at the scene?

A I was aware of it, but T was not concerned
with It, because we had two FBI agents thal were going

to take care of that, and T put my trust in them to take |

care of that, and my, my focus was on Jeffrey Weinhaus,
and getting him secured and covering him, and in fact,
Sergeant Folsom secured him.

(3 When he went down, wers you concemed he might
still be a threat? "He" meaning Jeff.

A Of course. He still has the gun on him, ves.

(3 And you observed Sergeant Folsom take the gun
from Jeff?

A Yes.

3 Okay. When Jeff fell, you testified he fell
om his face downwards, What happened to his hands when
he fell?

A They were still underneath him. Whenever he
was laying there, they were underneath his front. He
was laying on his front and his hands are still
underneath him.

) So ifthis {s the ground, he was sort of lying
with hig hands sorl of underneath his body not in view
of you?

A Yes, that is correct. And 1 had, at that

in-lT-Rerkpne:
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1 point I had a good view of his, his body at that point, | 1 () Fair enough, When was that statement drafted
2 except for it would have been the left side. 2 by you?
3 3 All right. And then this shooting was 3 A That was drafted the morning afterwards, prior
4 investigated by Sergeant Perry Smith? 4 to going into an interview with Sergeant Smith.
5 A That is eorrect. 5 Q) So the events were fresh in vour mind, that's
& O Okay. And you were interviewsd by Sergeant | 6 fair to say?
7 Perry Smith? 7 A Yes,
8 A Yes. C 0 And this was the first shooting you'd been
3 0} And some of those interviews were recorded. 5 involved in?
10 A That is correct. 1o A That is correct.
11 ) And did yvou ever talk to a Lieutenant George (21 ) Ifyou could change anything in that report,
12 Knowles about the shooting? 1z would you?
13 A Briefly. 13 A Yes,
14 » Okay. Is Lieutenant Knowles your supervisor? |14 0 And what would that ba??
15 A Heis my, he is my lientenant, but Sergeant |15 A That I only fired once.
15 Felsom is my superviser, so he would be the next person | 16 } Okay. And thal was just an honest mistake?
17 in line in my chain of command. 17 A That was an honest mistake, I wasn't sure how
1g ) He's up the chain of command? 18 many times I fired.
1% A Yes. 19 And in fact, what I did was, [ took my magazine |
20 0 Did you ever talk to a lawyer named Anthony |2ze outand I looked at it, and there was only one missing, |
21 Laramore about this shooting? 21 one round missing out of the magazine, but T forgot te
22 A Mot that T recall. 22 account for it was an extended magazine that dovsn't have,
23 3 Okay. He's a eivil lawyer from 5t. Louis, I 23 and I forgot to sccount for the rounds that were in the
24  believe, he was retained by the Weinhaus family atone |24 extended magazine whenever 1 looked, so -
25 point. 25 Q) Gotit. Okay. But other than that, vou stand
Page 58 Page 60
i A Yeah, not that T recall. 1 by the report? !
2 0} You don't recall talking to him? 2 A Yes. '
|3 A No 3 Q Okay. And then, are you familiar with this
4 } Okay. Have you ever shot anyone ¢lse before? | 4 document, which I submit to you is en interview summary
5 A No, I have not. 5 prepared by Sergeant Bauer, related - or 15 that
§ ) Okay. I'm going to show you a couple s Corporal Ashby?
7 decuments. We're going to mark this Exhibit 2, T guess, | 7 A This is Corporal Ashby.
B or do you want to keep the numbers going up? 8 ) Corporal Ashby, excuse me. Related 1o his
2 THE REPORTER: We can mark it as five. 9 interview with vou. Have vou reviewed this document?
1o [Reporter marked Defendant's Exhibit 5]. 10 A Nao, | have not.
11 Q (By Mr. Eastwood) S0 Exhibit 5. Mr. Parks |11} Have vou seen this before, ever?
112 kindby gave that to me todav, Do you recognize that |12 A Yes, I have,
13 document, sir? 132 ) Okay. But vou didn't review it in preparation
14 A Yes, Ido. 14 for your deposition today?
1 ) And what 1s it? 15 A No, I did not.
is A It appears to be a written statement thatl  |1¢ 3 Do you believe that this document fairly and
17 typed out. |17 accurately reflects your statements to Corporal Ashby?
18 Q Okay. And did you review that in preparation |18 And if vou need time to peruse it, please do.
13 for your deposition today? /1% A Yeah, Let me just look at it here real quick.
20 A Yes. But not this piece of paper you handed |20 Okay.
21 me. 21 Q' So what do vou think, does Corporal Ashby
22 @ Okay. But the content you did review? 22 fairly and accurately reflect your statements in this
(23 A Yes. 23 report?
24 Q And do you stand by that statemnent that you — |24 A Unless I missed something, 1 believe so.
25 A (Other than how many times I shot, 25 Q Okay. Well, and are there any statements in
Hin-L-Serepii Court Reporting Assoclates
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1 here that vou would have Corporal Ashby comrect? 1 A Yes. You can hear me telling him to get on
2 A From what I knew at the time, I don't think | 2 the ground.
380, El ) You're both telling him to get on the ground?
4 } Okay. ls there anything that you feel is 4 A Yes.
5 being omitted here, particularly a glaring omission? | 5 ) Who is saying government?
] A No. 5 A That's Sergeant Folsom talking to the FBI
7 (} Something that's needed to tell the story 7 agents that are coming across the parking lot.
8 properly? 8 [Video playing].
a A No. ] 3} Who said he's down?
10 Q Okay. I wantto move on briefly to -- We're |10 A Sergeant Folsom.
11 almost done here. 12 [Video playing].
12 A Okay. 12 } Does down mean he's dead, or just mean he's
13 Q [@'wantto show you two things. One isan 13 down?
14 audiotape that I think vou may have heard before, it's |14 A He's down. Basically saying he's secure.
15 recorded either by Jeff, and/or his ex-wife, Valerie |15 (3} When Sergeant Folsom secured the gun in the
15 Weinhaus. 16 holster from Weinhaus when he was on the ground, what
17 And I'm not going to play the entire tape for |17 did he do with it, once he secured it?
18 you, because it beging about five minutes before he gets |28 A He removed it from the waistband area, and he
15 to the scens, so obviously, you have no knowledge of what |18 tossed it back behind Weinhaus' feet, and it landed on
20 he's saying or doing when he's just driving around, so -= |20 the ground behind Weinhauos' feet, and once I saw that
|21 But what I'm asking you to do is two things. One, 15 to |21 and he was pulling his hands in, I saw the FBI agent
zz listen to this and tell me if it fairly and accurately 22 taking cover, that's when I left to go call our Troop C
23 depicts the events as you recall them, and, number two, |23 headquoarters for an ambulance, and notified them of the
24 T'm going to have a few guestions, I'm going to have & few |24 sitoation.
25 statements in there. 25 (3 Was the gun securely in the holster at the
- Page 62 FPags 64
[ 1 So I'm just going to fast forward it, 1f that's 1 time when he threw it away, or was the holster open?
2 okay with vou? 2 A I think it was partially out of his holster
3 A That's - . 3 whenever he threw it, or at least whenever T saw it on
4 [Video playing]. 4 the ground, it was partially out of the holster, 1
5 ) Who is that? 5 believe. I'm not --
6 A That would be Sergeant Folsom. | 8 (3 Did you observe Sergeant Folsom close the
7 [Video playing] 7 holster before he tossed it?
8 ) BSothat's Jeff and Sergeant Folsom talking 8 A No. Because | was standing over Weinhaus
g back and forth? 5 watching him, more than I was watching what Sergeant
1o A That is correct. 10 Folsom was doing.
11 [Video playing]. 11 Q You were securing Weinhaus?
12 () Was that Sergeant Folsom ordering him down? |12 A Yes. I was, | was not securing Weinhauns.
13 A Yes. 13 Sergeant Folsom was securing Weinhaus, [ was providing
14 [Video playing]. 14 cover where I would have been standing in case Weinhaos
15 ) Now what do you hear Jefl say? 15 were to —
16 A You're going to have to shoot me, man, 16 ) Reach for the pun?
17 ) Are vou sure it couldn't be anything else? 14 A Reach for the gun, or try to rollover on
18 A I am positive it's not anything else. 18 Sergeant Folsom and try to fight with him on the ground,
13 ) No doubt? 15 or anything like that.
20 A No doubt. 20 So we're taught in the academy that one person
21 [Video playing]. 21 secures, one person provides cover, so that way if
22 3 Do you hear your voice at any point on that 22 something does happen, you're not just both standing
23 tape just now? | can replay it. I'm not trying o -- 23 right there in the same spot, or both kneeling down doing
24 A Yes. During the whole time you just played? |24 something and you have no cover. |
25 ) Yes, 25 ) Did Sergeant Folsom roll Wemhaus over? |
|

L=l d i
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1 A Iean't remember if he did that, or if | did 1 A Okay.
2 that. 2 3 And 1 just want you to watch it and tell me if
3 Q) Okay. But someone rolled Weinhaus over? 3 it truthfully and accurately depicts the events, or if
4 A Mot for a while. Not for a little while 4 you have some objection or problem with the video; okay?
5 after. Because we both thought he had died, and he was, | 5 A Okay.
& hewas laying on the ground with his handeuffs behind | & [¥ideo playing].
7 his, handeuifs behind his back, and then I had left to | 7 ) Is that you?
g call the ambulance. Y A Yes. That is me.
| 9 And then whenever T was coming back thereina | 9 0 So there you are, just as you're saying,
10 short period T saw him move, so | knew he was still alive, |10 holding that gun?
11 and [ think that's when we - [ think Lonnie Keathley, |11 A Yes.
12 Corporal Lonnie Keathley was pulling in, or something. |12 ) Once you hear a gun, that's when you pulled
13 1I'm not sure exactly how that happened. 13 your gun out?
14 ) So it was after that he was cuffed, a while 14 A Yes.
15  after he was euffed that he was rolled over? 15 [Video playing].
16 A He could have rolled him up to check him, but |16 ) And that's when he said, you're going to have
17 1don't remember, Idon't remember. 17 to shoot me, man?
18 ) Did he roll him over after he retrieved the 18 A Yes,
19 firearm and the holster? 13 Q Okay. So that brief snip-it there of about 12
20 A We're taught to check them for further 20 seconds, that accurately reflects the shooting as you |
21 weapons, and | was at the car, so | don't know if he |21 recall it?
22 rolled him over, or not. az A Yes.
23 Butlthought you said you were covering him, |23 MR. EASTWOOD: Okay. Ihave no further
4 50 -- 24 guestions for you,
25 A Iwas covering him, but as soon as he got the |25 THE WITNESS: Thank you.
Page 66 Paps 68
1 gun out and I saw the FBI agent coming, that's when 1 | 1 MR. PARKS: Do you wish to waive signature?
2 left and I went back arpund the other side of Weinhaus' | 2 THE WITNESS: That's fine.
3 car to my car and used the radio to call. 3 MR. PARKS: Okay. We are dene then.
4 Q Okay. Iunderstand better now, a MR, EASTWOQOD: vou're done. Thank you very mach
5 And he was rolled over once you went around the | 5 for your time today, sir.
6 car? [
7 A L Idon't remember. 7 [SIGNATURE OF THE WITHESS WAIVED BY AGREEMENT
g Q Okay. There's a statement on the tape -- I'm 8 OF COUNSEL AND CONSENT OF THE WITHESS].
s going to fast forward, is that okay? g
10 A It's fine with me. 10
11 Q) It's about 746, start about — 11
1z [Video playing]. 12
13 ) Whatis J4?7 "He's not J4." What does that £3
14 mean? 14
15 A He is not dead. 15
18 3 Oh. J4 means dead. 16
17 A J4 means deceased, or a fatality. 17
18 ) Okay. And I realize T have not played this 1g
18 whole audiotape for vou today, but the portions that [ |19
20 have played for you, you believe truthfully and 20 l
21 accurately record the events? 21 '
2z A Yes, it records what happens. 22
23  Okay. And then [ want to show you a video, |23
za This is a, this is a snip-pit, a critical snip-pit, but 24
25 g snip-it from the watch video. 25
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1. On September 11. 2012, Sergeant Henry J. Folsom and I went to the Franklin County
Prosecuting Attorney’s Office, wherein Sergeant Folsom applied for and received an arrest
warrant for Jeffery W. Weinhaus, white male, date of birth October 6, 1966 of 2360 State Route
K_ St. Clair. Missouri. The charges on the errest warrant stermmied from a earlier investigation,
wherein Sergeant Folsom and I contacted Weinhaus at his residence on August 22,2012
reference threats he made against judicial officers in Crawford County, M i550UTL.

2. On September 11. 2012, after obtaining the arrest warrant for Weinhaus, Sergeant Folsom and
1 contacted Federal Bureau of Investigation Agents Patrick Cunningham and Michael
Maruschak. who agreed to meet us in St. Clair, Missouri and assist us in serving the arrest
warrant on Weinhaus. After meeting with Special Agent Cunningham and Special Agent
Maruschak. we agreed to attempt to have Weinhaus meet with us at the Missouri Farmers
Association {MFA) Oil station on Missouri Route K between 51, Clair and Piney Park, Missouri.
which is in close proximity to Weinhaus® residence under the ruse that we were returming
property seized from his residence on August 22, 2012. Sergeant Folsom also arranged through
Troop 1 Radio 10 have two marked Missouri State Highway Batrol cars from the Franklin County
Zanes in the immediate area of the MFA Oil station in case Weinhaus attempled to flee.

3. At 1246 hours, once all officers were in the areq, Sergeant Folsom contacted Weinhaus by
telephone and requested he meet with him and me at the MFA ()il station near his residence.
According to Sergeant Folsom, Weinhaus siated he was in Union, Missouri but would meet us in
approximately fifteen minutes after he contacted additional people to accompany him. With this
information. il was agreed that Special Agent Cunningham and Special Agent Maruschak would
stage on the south side of the parking lot to have access 1o any additional people that might
accompany Weinhaus. 1 placed my patrol vehicle facing southwest on the northwestern edge of
the parking lot adjacent to Missourt Route k.

4 A short time after 1300 hours, 1 observed a green Subaru passenger vehicle slowing to turm in
the north entrance to the MFA Qil station. | recognized the driver as Weinhaus and ohserved
that he was taking ofT his seatbelt as he entered the parking Tot. 1also noticed that Weinhaus had
a determined look on his face. Onee Weinhaus entered the Parking lot Sergeant Folsom and I
exited my patrol vehicle. Sergeant Folsom from the passenger side and me from the driver’s side.
As Sergeant Folsom exited my patrol vehicle, he requested 1 open the trunk to support the Tuse
we were returning property to Weinhaus, Weinhaus continued into the parking lot and begen to
drive his vehicle in a circular motion around the parking lot. Weinhaus placed his vehicle
approximately fifteen to twenty-five feet away from my vehicle and slightly forward of my
vehicle's position. Due to Weinhaus placement of his vehicle | immediately felt that Sergeant
Folsom and ] were in danger for our safety. Weinhaus had created, with his vehicle a barricade
to our position. Sergeant Folsom continued around the rear of my patrol vehicle with a file
folder in his hand to continiue the ruse that Weinhaus had to sign for the relurned property. Asl
opened the trunk, Sergeant Folsom approached Weinhaus’ vehicle. When Sergeant Folsom was
approximately ten to twenty feet behind Weinhaus’ vehicle, | heard Sergeant Folsom stari to
explain to Weinhaus that he needed 10 sign some papers. 1 then heard Sergeant Folsom ask
Weinhaus what he was doing with the gun. Weinhaus replied and asked Sergeant Folsom what
he was doing with his gun. [ turned from the trunk area and saw a green, nylon, military style
holster attached to Weinhaus' front right hip. | immediately drew my patrol issued firearm from




my holster and saw that Sergeant Folsom had also drawn his fircarm. | immediately took a
position to the rear of Weinhaus® vehicle when I saw Weinhaus unlatch his holster with his right
hand. Weinhaus then placed his hand back down to his side and appeared 10 begin to shake.
Sergeant Folsom and | both ordered Weinhzus to the ground. As we ordered Weinhaus to the
ground he placed his right hand under the holster flap as if to grip the fircarm, In fear for my life
and the 1ife of the Sergeant Folsom, | began to fire my patro] issued firearm, Sergeant also fired.
After iring my patrol issued weapon once, | saw Weinhaus torn 180 degrees and fall 1o the
ground. Sergeant Folzsom immediately went to Weinhaus to remove the weapon from Weinhaus’
person as 1 covered Weinhaus, Sergeant Folsom informed me that Weinhaus still had his hand
om the weapon. Sergeant Folsom gained control of the weapon and hoelster and removed it from

Weinhaus™ person.

3. Afier Sergeant Folsom removed Weinhaus® weapon | noticed that Special Agent Maruschak
was also providing cover on Weinhaus as Sergeant Folsom secured him with handeuffs. |
immediately left my position and returned 10 my patzaol vehicle and contacted Troop C
Communications Division, informed them of the shots fired and requested an ambulance: [ then
retrieved latex stvle gloves from my trunk and began administering medical aid to Weinhaus, A
short time later, Emergency Medical Personnel arrived on scene. [ then removed the handeuffs
from Weinhaus and turned care for Weinhaus to the Emergency Medical Personnel.

S.E. Mertens, Corporal
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DETAILS OF INVESTIGATION
INTERVIEW WITH SCOTT E. MERTENS

1. On Wednesday, September 12, 2012, Sergeant Perry L. Smith of the
Miggouri State Highway Patrol, Division of Drug and Crime Control and
I interviewed Corporal Scott E. Mertens of the Missouri State Highway
Patrol Divigion of Drug and Crime Control, Troop I Rolla, regarding the
officer invelved shooting that occurred at 1535 Highway K, 5t. Clair,
Missouri. The interview was recorded on a department issued digital
recerder and the contents of the interview was downlocaded onte a
compact disc and is attached to this report. The interview was
conducted at Troop I Headouarters in an interview room located at the
Division of Drug and Crime Control Office. There was no one else
pregsent during the interview,

2. Corporal Mertens is described as Scott E. Mertens, badge number
567. Corporal Mertens has been employved with the Missourl State
Highway Patrol for seventeen years, and as a Criminal Investigator for
the Division of Drug and Crime Control for six years. Corporal Mertens
ig assigned to Troop I Heademarters located at P O Box 128, Rolla,

Migsouri.

3. During the interview, Corporzl Mertens was asked to explain the
events that led up to the cfficer involwved shocting. He told us he
skipped around a lot during an interview and he told us he a wrote down
what had happened because it was easier for him. He asked if he could
read his srtatement. I told him yves. He asked me how far we wanted him
te go back inte the investigation. I told him to start out when he got
imvolved. He said he would read his statement, which would explain

a lot,

4. Corporal Mertensz read the following events to us from a narrative
he had prepared pricr to our interview with him. Corporal Mertens

gave us the narrative after his interview was concluded, which I seized
a5 evidence. The narrative was later transported to Troop C
Headgquarters and released to the evidence custodian with property
control number 02220911121340. Corporal Mertens read the following
account:

8. Mertens said on September 11, 2012, Sergeant Henry J. Folscom
and him went t¢ the Franklin County Prosecuting Attormey's
Office wherein Sergeant Folsom applied for and received an
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arrest warrant for Jeffrey Weinhaus, white male, date of bhirth
October 06, 1966, of 2360 State Eoute K, St. Clair, Mizsouri.
The charges on the arrest warrant stemmed from an sarlier
investigation, whersein Sergeant Felsom and he contacted
Weinhaus at his residence on August 22, 2012, reference
threats he made against judicial officers in Crawford County,
Missouri .

On September 11, 2012, after obtaining the arrest warrant for
Weinhaus, Sergeant Folsom and he contacted the Federal Bureau
of Investigation, Agents Patrick Cunningham and Michael
Maruschak, who agreed to meet ug in St. Clair, Missouri, and
assist us in serving the arrest warrant on Weinhaus. After
meeting with Special Agent Cunningham and Special Agent
Maruschal, we agreed to attempt to have Weinhaus meet with us
at the Missouril Farmers Association (MFA) 0il station on
Missouri Route ¥ between S5t. Clair and Piney Park, Missouri,
which is in c¢lose proximity to Weinhaus' residence, under the
ruse that we were returning property seized from his residence
on August 22, 2Z012. Sergeant Folsom also arranged through
Troocp I radio to have two marked Missouri State Highway Patrol
cars from the Franklin County zones in the immediate area of
the MFAZ 0il station in case Weinhaus attempted to flee.

At 124% hours, once all of the officers were in the area,
Sergeant Folsom contacted Weinhaus by telephone and recuested
he meet with him and me at the MFA 0il staticon near his
residence. According to Sergeant Folsom, Weinhaus stated he
was in Union, Misscuri, but would meet us in approximately
fifteen minutes after he contacted additional people that
might accompany Weinhaus. I placed my patrol wvehicle facing
southwest om the northwestern edge of the parking lot adjacent
to Missouri Route E.

A short time after 1300 hours, I observed a green Subaru
passenger wvehicle glowing to turn in the north entrance to the
MFa 0il station. I recognized the driver as Weinhaus and
chserved that he was taking off his seatbelt as he entered the
parking lot. I also noticed that Weinhaus had a determined
look on his face. Once Weinhaus entered the parking iot,
Sergeant Folsom and I exited my patrol wvehicle; Sergeant
Folscm from the passenger side and me from the driver's side.
As Sergeant Folsom exited my patrel wvehicle, he reguested I
open the trunk to support the ruse we were returning property
to Weinhaus. Weinhsaus continued into the parking lot and
began to drive his wehicle in a circular motion arcund the
parking let. Weinhaus placed his wvehicle approximately fifteen

Lo twenty-five feet away from my wvehicles' position. Due to
Weinhaus' placement of his wehicle, I immediately felt that
Sergeant Folsom and I were in danger for our safety. Weinhaus

had created, with his wvehicle, & barricade to our position.
Sergeant Folsom continued around the rear of my patrol vehicle
with the file folder in his hand to continue the ruse that
Weinhaus had teo zign for the returned property. A&As I opened
the trunk, Sergeant Folsom approached Weinhaus' wehicle, When
Sergeant Folsom was approximatsely ten to twenty fzet bshind
Weinhaus' wehicle, I heard Sergeant Felesom ask Weinhaus what
he was doing with the gun. Weinhaus replied and asked
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Sergeant Folsom what he was doing with his gun. I turned from
the trunk area and =aw a green, oylon military style holster
attached to Weinhaus' front right hip., I immediately drew my
patrol issued firearm from my helster and saw that Sergeant
Fol=om had alzo drawn his firearm. I immediately toock a
position to the rear of Weinhaus' wvehicle when I saw Weinhaus
unlatch his holster with his right hand. Weinhaus then placed
his hand back down to his side and appeared to begin to shake.
Sergeant Folsom and I both ordered Weinhaus to the ground. As
we ordered Weinhaus to the ground, he placed his right hand
under the holster flap as if to grip the firearm. In fear for
my life and the life of Sergeant Folsom, I bhegan to fire my
patrol issued firearm. Sergeant Foleom also fired. After
firing my patrol issued weapon once, I saw Weinhaus turn 180
degrees and fall to the ground. ESergeant Folsom immediately
went te Weinhaus to remove the weapon from Weinhaus' person as
I covered Weinhaus. Sergeant Folsom informed me that Weinhaus
still had his hand on the weapon. Sergeant Folsom gained
control of the weapon and holster and removed it from
Weinhaus' person.

e. After Sergeant Folsom removed Weinhaus' weapon, I noticed that
Special Agent Maruschak was also providing cover on Weinhaus
as Sergeant Folsom secursd him with handcuffs. I 1lmmediately
left my position and returned to my patrol vehicle and
contacted Troop C Communications Diwvision, informed them of
the shots fired, and reguested an ambulance. I then retrieved
latex style gloves from my trunk and began administering
medical aid to Weinhaus. A short time later, Emergency
Medical Personnel arrived on scense. I then removed the
handeuffs frem Weinhaus and turned care for Weinhaus over
to the Emergency Medical Personnel

E. Typed signature of 3.E. Mertens, Corporal

5. After Corporal Mertens read his statement he was asked while he was
giving Weinhaus care if Weinhaus was talking. Corporal Mertens said he
was, but he was incoherent and he zat up on his own. Corporal Mertens
was asked who fired their weapon first. He teold us that Sergeant
Folsom did. He was asked how many rounds did he (Sergeant Folsom)
fire. Corporal Mertens said he was teold by Sergeant Folsom that he
fired four shots. He went on to gay that he did nect keep count but
knew it was several. He said Folsom fired four gunshots, and he fired
once. Corporal Mertens was asked how many rounds he carries in his
magazine, He told us he keeps his magazine fully loaded and one round
in the chamber of his service weapon, He was asked how many ammunition
rounds hiz magazine held. He said he did not know without looking at
it. We then told Corporal Mertens that we located six spent .40
caliber ammunition rounds at the crime scene. He was asked if it was
possible he may have fired twice during the incident. Corporal
Mertens told us that it was very possible that he fired twice.

Corporal Mertens was asked where his location was when he fired his
weapon. He said he was behind Weinhaus' wehicle, about cne to two

feet close to the center of the vehicle. He was asked why he took

that position. He said there was cover there and he was close to his
patrol wvehicle.

6. Corporal Mertens was asked te explain how Weinhaus entered the
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parking leot. He said when Weinhaus entered the parking lot, they beoth
got out of their wvehicle about the same time and he went to the trunk
to act like he was getting Weinhaus' property. He went on to say that
when Weinhaus entered the parking lot, he observed him removing his
seatbelt and he got a bad feeling that something was not right. He
further adviged that as Weinhaus pulled in he cbserved him reach down,
then all of a sudden the seatbelt came off and Weinhaus' facial
expressicn appeared to be a determined loock., Weinhaus then made a
large circle around the parking lot and parked his wvehiecle in front of
his in a tactical maneuver. Corporal Mertens said he was thinking
gomething wasn't right and thought, "0h Fuck, that's not good".

Corporal Mertens was asked what happened when Sergeant Folsom met
h Weinhaus. Corporal Mertens =aid he overheard Sergeant Folsom tell
einhaus that he nesded to sign some paperwork. He then heard Sergeant
Folsom ask Weinhaus what he was doing with that gun. Corporal Mertens
said he was approaching Weinhaus and he cbserved the weapon. Corporal
Mertenz was asked what did he do when he heard Weinhaus had a weapomn.
Corporal Mertens said he drew hisg weapon. He also advised he could
feel his heart pounding, and he was telling himself to calm down as he
was pesitioning himself to close proximity to cover. He was asked what
direction he was facing at that time. He told me he was facing the
side of the store where the old gas pumps were stored. He was asked
where Sergeant Folsom was facing. He =aid Sergeant Folsom was facing
the parking lot and Weinhaus was facing Sergeant Folsom with his back
towards the parking leot. Ceorporal Mertens was asked what happened
next:. He =zaid he remembered Sergeant Folsom asking about his gun, and
Weinhaus asking Sergeant Folsom what he was doing with his gun.
Weinhaus then reached down. unlatched his holster, and he ohserved
Weinhaus starting to shake, like a tremor or cold chill went through
his beody. He then overheard Sergeant Folsom tell Weinhaus to get on
the ground, and he zlso told Weinhaus to get on the ground, Welnhaus
did not get on the ground, and he cbserved him raise the flap up from
the holster to retrieve the weapon. At that point iz when he started
to fire his weapon. He was asked who fired first. He said Sergeant
Folsom did. He went on to szay he remembered hearing a gunshot before
he fired his weapon. Corporal Mertens was asked if Weinhaus was able
Lo remove the weapon from hig holster. He gaid he could not recall,
but he did have hig hand on the weapon and when Sergeant Folsom
retrieved the weapon from Weinhaus, the weapon was partially out of
the holster. Corporal Mertens was asked why he fired at Weinhaus, He
said he was in fear of his safety and Sergeant Folsom's safety.

8. Corporal Mertens was asked what did the agents with the Federal
Bureau of Investigation do. He said he did not know and was not
concentrated cn them. He advised they were s=t up. on the other side
of the parking lot due to Weinhaus saving he was going to bring gome
people with him. He said where they were the agents were parksd
originally, but a truck pulled into the lot to work on the gutters of
the store, which blocked the agents view, He observed the agents
backing up, and at that point Weinhaus entered the parking lot. He
thought the agents were coming toward their direction and witnessed
Weinhaus with a gun.

T Corporal Mertens wasg asked why they thought Weinhaus was bringing
additional people. He said it was conveved to him by Sergeant

Folsom when he made arrangements to meet them. He was asked how they
contacted Weinhaus., He said they contacted him using the Patrol
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telephone. I asked him if the telephone call was time stamped. EHe
said yes and that iz how he knew the telephone czll was placed at 1246
nours. Corporal Mertens was asked if they drove to Weinhaus' residence
prior to making the telephone call. He =aid once they received the
arrest warrant, they contacted the FBRI who advised them they were on
their way. While waliting for the agents, they decided to drive out to
the MFA parking lot to survey it. They also went to Weinhaus'
residence to see if he was home due Lo Sergeant Folsom receiving
information that Weinhaus may not be in the area. He said they pulled
into Weinhaus' neighbor's driveway, which was a good distance away,
and observed the green Subaru parked in Weinhaus' driveway. They
thought the Subary belonged to Weinhaus' wife due to seeing Weinhaus
in a pickup truck before. Corporal Mertens said Weinhaus had deone a
broadcast earlier and they learned that Weinhaus may be getting a
divorce and may not be living at the residence. He said they left the
arsa and went to ger lunch at Taco Bell while waiting on the FBEI
agents. Corporal Mertensg said Weinhaus must nave left while they were
waiting for the FBI due to him showing up from the opposite direction
with the Subaru. He said they were expecting Weinhaus to be driving a
truck, and prior to hig arrival, they ochserved a2 blue truck pull onto
the parking and the driver had dark hair and was balding. &at first
they thought he may be Weinhaus, but the driver gf the vehicle wasn't
Weinhaus .

10. Corporal Mertens was asked where he was standing when he fired his
weapoen., He said right behind Weinhaus' wehicle. He was asked if he
knew if he hit Weinhaus. He =aid sccording to his sight picture; he
thought he did but did not know for sure. He did not recall seeing any
shots striking Weinhaus., He was asked if he heard the shot impact.
Corporal Mertens adwvised he did not hear his shots but felt the recoil
of his weapon. He remembered hearing cunshot coming from Sergeant
Folsom's location. He went on to say once he fired, Weinhaus turned
180 degrees away in a clockwise direction, turning right. Corporal
Mertens was asked if he was wearing his bullet proof vest during the
incident. He said he was not wearing his vest. He was asked where was
his wvest located. He told us his vest was sitting in the back seat of
his patrol car. He was asked if Sergeant Folsom was wearing his west.
He said no and it was located in the back seat too. He was then asked
if he talked to any witnesses prior to our arrival. He said he talked
to a witnezs, who was located behind Sergeant Folsom's location,
working on a house. He was asked if the marked Trooper's wvehicles
were present during the time of incident. He said no and Corporal
Keathley arrived first and he assisted Corporal Keathley in parking by
Weinhaus. He was asked where did the ambulance park. He thought the
ambulance parked by Corporal Keathlev's patrol vehicle. He was asked
who called for backup. He said he did and also requested an

ambulance. He was asked how long did the incident occur from when the
gun wag cobserved to the end of the shooting. He thought bhetween three
Lo ten seconds.

1i1. Corporal Mertens was asked if we failed to ask him any cuestions
that may assist us in the investigation. He said no and the interview
was concluded at 1115 hours.

12. This investigation is continuing.

J. Scott Ashby, Corporal JSA:e]s
Divisien of Drug and Crime Ceontrol
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